
Procurement Board  
 

Dear Member, 
 

You are invited to attend the meeting of the Procurement Board to be held as follows 
for the transaction of the business indicated. 
David Wilcock 

Monitoring Officer 

 
DATE: Wednesday, 10 November 2021 

 
TIME:  10.00 am 

 
VENUE: Salford Suite, Salford Civic Centre, Chorley Road, Swinton 

 
In accordance with ‘The Openness of Local Government Bodies Regulations 
2014,’ the press and public have the right to film, video, photograph or record 

this meeting.  
 

AGENDA 

 
1   Apologies for absence  

 

 

2   Declarations of interest  

 

 

3   To approve, as a correct record, the minutes of the meeting held 
on 27th October 2021  

 

(Pages 1 - 4) 

4   Matters arising  
 

To note that the items deferred at the last meeting, 5(a) Islington Park 
Improvement Scheme and 5(b) GM Clean Air Zone Street Lighting 

Column Replacements are intended to be presented at the next 
meeting to allow the requested Social Value information to be collated 
 

 

5   Decision items - Part 1 (open to the public)  

 

 

5a Request for Approval - Contract Award - Hollybank Supported 
Housing - Re-roofing - Tracy Squirrel  
 

(Pages 5 - 10) 

5b Request for Approval - Exception to Contractual Standing Orders - 
Contract Award - Public Sector Decarbonisation Scheme - Solar PV 

Installation on SCC Assets - Hayley Nixon  
 

(Pages 11 - 22) 

6   Any other business - Part 1 (open to the public)  

 

 

7   Date and time of next meeting  

 

10:00am on Wednesday 24th November 2021 in the Salford Suite, 
Civic Centre, Chorley Road, Swinton, M27 5DA. 

 

Public Document Pack



 

 
 

Contact Officer: Tel No: 0161 793 3316 
Carol Eddleston, Senior Democratic Services 
Advisor 

E-Mail: carol.eddleston@salford.gov.uk 



Procurement Board Meeting Held in the Civic Centre, Chorley Road, 

Swinton, M27 5DA 

27th October 2021 

Meeting commenced at 10:00am 

Meeting ended at 10:33am 

Present In Person 
Councillors Hinds (in the chair), Merry and Youd. 

In Attendance In Person 
Carol Eddleston Democratic Services 

In Attendance via MS Teams 

Anene Chiegboka Principal Engineer 

Mark Hart  Principal Officer, Housing Strategy and Enabling Team 

Anthony Hilton  Head of Strategic Procurement 

Andrew Leigh  Head of Housing & Strategy 

Perry Twigg  Associate – Regeneration & Infrastructure 

 

1. Apologies for Absence 

Apologies for absence were submitted on behalf of City Mayor Paul Dennett, Councillor Kelly and 

Chris Hesketh. 

2. Declarations of Interest 

There were no declarations of interest. 

3. Minutes of Proceedings 

The minutes of the meeting held on 13th October were approved as a correct record. 

4. Matters Arising 

There were no matters arising. 

 

5. Decision Items – Part 1 – Open to the Public 

 

5(a) Request for Approval – Contract Award – Islington Park Improvement Scheme 

Consideration was given to a report of the Strategic Director Place seeking approval to award the 
contract for the Islington Park Improvement Scheme. 

The report sought approval to award a contract to implement phase 3 of the City Centre Bee 

Network (Islington Park) which was integral to the wider Salford City Centre Bee routes being 

proposed. The improvement works would transform Islington Park into a vibrant and engaging green 

Page 1

Agenda Item 3



space that both developed and enhanced active travel and connectivity, whilst also creating a focal 
point for the community. 

Members of the board requested that the item be deferred to allow the report to be re-drafted to 

include more detail about the tender evaluation and Social Value in particular. 

RESOLVED, THAT: this item be deferred until such time as the additional detail requested could be 

presented. 

 

5(b) Request for Approval – Contract Award – Greater Manchester Clean Air Zone 

Street Lighting Column Replacements 

Consideration was given to a report of the Strategic Director Place seeking approval to award the 
contract for Greater Manchester Clean Air Zone Street Lighting Column Replacements.  

The Clean Air Plan was approved at the Cabinet on 27th July 2021 and the Clean Air Zone would 

include all of the roads within Greater Manchester, with the exception of the motorway network. 

Drivers would be informed of the operation and extents of the zone by highways signage. The 

scheme would be enforced with the use of more than 800 Automatic Number Plate Recognition 

(ANPR) cameras installed across the network in Greater Manchester. As a result, 72 lighting columns 

scattered across Salford needed to be replaced with uprated columns to enable the installation of 

the electrical equipment, brackets and ANPR cameras. 7 separate standalone posts would be 

installed by the ANPR camera contractor to complete the programme of ANPR cameras across the 

City.  

Members of the board requested that this item be deferred to allow the report to be re -drafted to 
include more detail about Social Value. 

RESOLVED, THAT: this item be deferred until such time as the additional detail requested could be 

presented. 

 

6. Exclusion of the Public  

RESOLVED: THAT, under section 100A(4) of the Local Government Act 1972, the public be excluded 

from the meeting for the following item of business on the grounds that it involved the likely 

disclosure of exempt information as specified in paragraph 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A to the Act.  

 

7. Decision Item – Part 2 – Closed to the Public 

7(a) Request for Approval to Go Out to Competition – Rough Sleepers Accommodation 

Programme 

Consideration was given to a report of the Strategic Director Place seeking approval to go out to 
competition to deliver the rough sleepers accommodation programme. 

The delivery of rough sleeper accommodation and for people at risk of rough sleeping was a key 

priority for the City and the report outlined the challenges, the progress and significant steps taken 

to increase the delivery of this type of accommodation and support aligned to the homelessness and 
housing strategies. 

Page 2



RESOLVED, THAT: Approval be granted to go out to competition for the delivery of the rough 
sleepers accommodation programme in accordance with the Council’s Contract Procedure Rules.  

Page 3



This page is intentionally left blank



Part 1: Open to the public 

 
 

REPORT OF 

 
The Strategic Director for Place 

 

TO 
 

Procurement Board 
 

ON 

 
10th November 2021 

 

 
  

TITLE:   Approval to Award the Contract for the re-roofing of Hollybank supported 
housing 

 
 
RECOMMENDATION:  

That Procurement Board approve the award of the Contract for re-roofing of pitched 
and flat roofs at Hollybank supported housing unit as detailed in the table below: 
 

 

Detail required Answers 

Title/Description of Contracted 
Service/Supply/Project 

Re-roofing of Hollybank supported housing 
building 

Name of Successful Contractor  Wright Build Ltd 

Supplier Registration Number 

(to be supplied by Corporate Procurement) 
01401191 

Type of organisation 

(to be supplied by Corporate Procurement) 
Private Limited Company 

Status of Organisation 

(to be supplied by Corporate Procurement) SME 

Contract Value (£) £166,091.00  full project costs £195,000.00 

Contract Duration  10 weeks 

Contract Start Date  17/11/2021 

Contract End Date  21/01/2022 

Optional Extension Period 1 N/a 

Optional Extension Period 2 N/a 

Page 5

Agenda Item 5a



Detail required Answers 
Who will approve each Extension 

Period? 
Choose an item. 

Contact Officer (Name & number) Les Woolhouse 07713 786 093 

Lead Service Group 

 
Place 

How the contract was procured? 

(to be supplied by procurement) 
Framework Call-Off (Mini Competition) 

Framework Details (where applicable) 

(procurement body, framework 
reference & title, start/ end date 

Minor building works framework Lot 2 

Funding Source Capital Programme 

Ethical Contractor (EC): Mayor’s 
Employment Charter 

  

  

EC: Committed to sign up to charter  

EC: Accredited Living Wage Employer  

 

 
EXECUTIVE SUMMARY:   

The purpose of this report is to seek approval for the award of the above mentioned 
contract. 

 

 

 
BACKGROUND DOCUMENTS: 
Exempt under Paragraph 3 of Schedule 12A of the Local Government Act 1972 

 
‘Tender Submissions and Evaluation Documents’ 

 
 
KEY DECISION:   

No – if the value of the decision is between £150,000 and £349,999  

 
 

DETAILS:  
 

1. Background 

Hollybank is a supported housing residential facility.  It has been identified that the 
pitched roofs over the residential accommodation and the flat roof over the single 

storey accommodation require replacement.  The building has been subjected to 
internal water damage which has left water marks to the ceilings and upper wall 

areas.    

Page 6



The works comprise of stripping of all the existing roofs.  Replacing the tiled roofs 
with tiling of the same quality; and installation of a new roof deck, insulation and a 

seamless cold applied built up roofing system to the flat roof. 

The works and products will be covered by guarantees of 15 years for the pitched 

roof and 20 years for the flat roof areas. 
 

2.  The Procurement Process 

The works for this project has been tendered under the Council’s e-tendering portal in 
accordance with Contractual Standing Orders. Tenders were let by mini competition 

under the Minor Building Works Framework Lot 2 Agreement. 

Two companies submitted a tender and these have been evaluated in accordance 
with selection criteria. 

The evaluation scores are as follows:- 

 

Name of Bidder 

% Price 

score 

Max 70% 

% Quality 

score 

Max 30% 

%Overall 

Score 

100% 

Wright Build Ltd 70.00 16.00 86.00 

Provider B 59.48 22.00 81.48 

Following the evaluation process the company that scored the highest in accordance 

with the selection criteria was Wright Build Ltd with a tender of £166,091.00. Their 
submission produced a score of 86.00% and represents the most economically 
advantageous offer to the Council which also supports social value. 

 
3. Social Value  

Wright Build Ltd will support Salford Charter for Social Value and the developed 10% 
better campaign to help social, economic, and environmental benefit across the city.  
Employees are paid above the living wage but are not accredited to the Living Wage 

Foundation, Wright Build are currently exploring the potential of being accredited. 

Whilst Wright Build are not a Salford Based contractor they are within the greater 

Manchester area.  They employ Salford residents with a number of these employees 
being employed on this contract. 

Wright Build operate a sustainable managed supply chain.  They look to purchasing 

materials and products from within the local area and have confirmed that they will 
be utilising Salford based branches of Travis Perkins, Build Base and PTS plumbing 

services. 

Lean Construction methodology would be utilised to eliminate and prevent waste 
throughout the project to include design and efficient purchasing.  This would also 

Page 7



include self-screening of the waste produced on site before being collected from site 
for recycling. 

Due to the size and timescale of the project the opportunities to undertake specific 
tasks however Wright Build have participated in local community events such as 

offering first hand work experience of the various building trades, promoting supply 
chain opportunities with SME’s and social enterprises within Salford.  They have also 
used their company mascot ‘Johnno’ to promote regeneration, the environment, 

building safety and career skills and trades.  The contractor is happy to continue 
providing these services to Salford. 

 
KEY COUNCIL POLICIES:  
 

All relating to carbon reduction and social value outcomes relating to local 
employment.  

 
 
EQUALITY IMPACT ASSESSMENT AND IMPLICATIONS:  

 
Work with construction projects is valuable in supporting local employment and in 

supporting local supply chains in construction work.  This in turn aids the growth and 
regeneration of the City. 

 
ASSESSMENT OF RISK:  High 

Sections of the roof have reached the end of their economic life and works are 

required to prevent the possibility of water ingress and potential closure of the 
building.

 
SOURCE OF FUNDING: Supplied by Gemma Singleton, Finance Officer  
 

There is funding available under the Property Capital Programme to cover the costs 
of the project.   
Expenditure code: P00015

 

LEGAL IMPLICATIONS: Supplied by: The Shared Legal Service – Contact Officer 

and telephone number: Tony Hatton – Principal Solicitor tel. 0161 219 6323 
 
When commissioning contracts for the procurement of goods, services, or the 

execution of works, the Council must comply with the Public Contracts Regulations 
2015 (PCR) and its own Contractual Standing Orders (CSO’s), failing which a contract 

may be subject to legal challenge from an aggrieved provider. The proposed award of 
the contract follows a tender exercise by mini competition in accordance with the Minor 
Building Works Framework Agreement Lot 2. 

 
The purpose of a framework agreement is to select through a procurement/ evaluation 

process a number of providers who can meet the service requirements of the Council, 
as and when those services are required. If they are required then the Council will 
undertake an exercise to call off the services from one or more of the providers who 

Page 8



have been selected to be on the framework and this may be through any number of 
ways e.g. mini-competition, direct allocation etc. depending on the circumstances. A 

contract will then be formed between the Council and the chosen provider/s. 
  

The Council will need to have followed the procedure set out in the framework 
agreement for mini competition to ensure the procurement process is compliant. Two 
companies from the framework suppliers submitted a tender, and the bid has been 

evaluated on the most economically advantageous tender basis in line with 
published procedures resulting in the proposed award of the contract to Wright Build 

Ltd. The procurement procedures therefore appear robust and compliant with the 
requirements of the Council’s CSO’s and PCR. 

 

 

FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS: Submitted by:  The Finance Team  

The works will be funded by the 2021/22 capital programme in the sum of £195,000.  
(Tender costs £166,091 plus surveys, professional fees and associated additional 
costs of £28,909). 

 
PROCUREMENT IMPLICATIONS: Supplied by:  The Corporate Procurement Team 

Contact officer and telephone number: Deborah Derbyshire (Category Manager – 
Corporate Procurement Team) tel 0161 686 6244 
 

The project has been competitively tendered by means of a mini competition under 
the Council’s own Minor Building Works Framework Lot 2 which complies with the 

Councils Contractual Standing Orders and the Procurement Contract Regulations.  
 
The winning tenderer has submitted the most economically advantageous offer in line 

with the rules of the framework and the award also supports the Council’s objectives 
of working towards delivering social value on this contract. 

 
HR IMPLICATIONS:  Supplied by: N/a 

 
CLIMATE CHANGE IMPLICATIONS:   
 

No significant Climate Change implications in this project. All projects are developed 
to meet or exceed current legislation and requirements relating to energy efficiency 
and carbon reduction targets. Projects are required to support the Council’s objectives 

of becoming carbon neutral by 2028.  
 

The works will be programmed to minimise the traffic impact in the area.  Any waste 
materials will be removed and taken to a transfer station for systematic sorting and 
recycling to ensure minimal landfill waste. 

  

Page 9



Sustainability plans would be targeted to also align with opportunities to continue to 
deliver social value outcomes 

 
 

OTHER DIRECTORATES CONSULTED: N/a 

 
CONTACT OFFICER: Les Woolhouse 

TELEPHONE NUMBER: 07713 786 093

 

WARD(S) TO WHICH REPORT RELATE(S): Pendleton & Charlestown 
 

 

Page 10



Sample C – Exception to CSO’S 

Part 1: Open to the public 

 
 

REPORT OF 

 
The Strategic Director for Place  

 

TO 
 

Procurement Board 
 

ON 

 
10th November 2021 

 

TITLE:  Approval for an Exception to Contractual Standing Orders to award a 
contract for the installation of roof mounted Solar PV to NPS Energy Limited in 

support of the Greater Manchester Regional Heat and Energy Decarbonisation 
Delivery Scheme. 

 

RECOMMENDATION:  

That the Procurement Board approves an exception to Contractual Standing Orders 

as permitted within the City Council Constitution for the reason(s) highlighted in the 
table below and the award of the Contract for the installation of roof mounted Solar PV 

to NPS Energy Limited as detailed in the table below: 

 

Detail required Answers 
Title/Description of Contracted 

Service/Supply/Project 
Installation of roof mounted Solar PV in support 

of the Greater Manchester Regional Heat and 
Energy Decarbonisation Delivery Scheme 

Name of Successful Contractor  NPS Energy Limited 

Supplier Registration Number 

(to be supplied by Corporate Procurement) 05513604 

Type of organisation 

(to be supplied by Corporate Procurement) 
Private Limited Company 

Status of Organisation 

(to be supplied by Corporate Procurement) SME 

Contract Value £607,568 Full Project 

Contract Duration  6 months 

Contract Start Date  01/11/2021 

Page 11

Agenda Item 5b



Sample C – Exception to CSO’S 

 

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY:   

The purpose of this report is to request an exception to Contractual Standing Orders 
to approve the award of a contract for the installation of roof mounted Solar PV to NPS 

Energy Limited in support of the grant funded Greater Manchester Regional Heat and 
Energy Decarbonisation Delivery Scheme.  

Salford City Council has been part of a consortium bid, led by the Greater Manchester 
Combined Authority (GMCA), NPS Limited completed the installations of the initial 11 
roof mounted solar PV that received 100% grant funding from the above scheme. NPS 

have delivered the installations to time and cost as agreed and by the original, very 
challenging, funding deadline of 30th September 2021. We were the only partner in the 

Contract End Date  30/04/2022 

Optional Extension Period 1 N/A 

Optional Extension Period 2 N/A 

Who will approve each Extension Period? Strategic Director (extension < £150k) 

Contact Officer (Name & number) Majid Maqbool 

Lead Service Group Place 

Reason for CSO Exception 

(select all that apply) 

The goods / services / works are only obtainable 
from one provider and there is no other provider 
available to allow genuine competition 

 

The execution of works or the supply of goods 
or services is controlled by a statutory body 

 

Delivers Best Value to the Council  

Special education, health or social care 
contracts, if it is considered in the Council’s best 
interests and to meet the Council’s obligations 
under relevant legislation 

 

The execution of works or the supply of goods 
and services is required so urgently as not to 
permit compliance with the requirements of 
competition 

 

Security works where the publication of 
documents or details in the tendering process 
could prejudice the security of SCC and Salford 
residents 

 

Procurements made through, or on behalf of, 
any consortium, local authority, statutory or 
similar body, provided that tenders or quotations 
are invited and contracts placed in accordance 
with national or EU legislation. 

 

Funding Source Combination of Above (please detail below) 

Ethical Contractor 
Mayor’s Employment Charter 

Committed to sign up to the Charter 

 

 

 Accredited Living Wage Employer  

Page 12



Sample C – Exception to CSO’S 

scheme to deliver by this date within the programme due to NPS efforts to work with 
the team, site contacts to deliver with minimal disruption. 

Due in part to our success in delivery, Salford have been able to secure additional 
grant funding towards installation at a further 11 sites. Contract award to NPS Energy 

Limited will support in this delivery within the 5 month project timescales, grant funding 
and spend is dependent upon practical completion on site by Feb 22 (to enable draw 
down of grant funding by Mar 22) with this tight timescale it is essential Salford is in a 

position to award the contract quickly. Award to NPS will also provide continuity of 
service from phase 1 works into phase 2 and will prove economically beneficial as 

NPS have completed detail design and costings which can be held into delivery of 
phase 2.  

 

BACKGROUND DOCUMENTS: 

Five year environment plan for Greater Manchester. 

 
Salford’s Climate Change Strategy - Creating a city prepared for the future. 

Report submitted at the Property/Regeneration Briefing on 8 February 2021 and 

subsequent decision taken by Paul Dennett, City Mayor to approve the continued 
participation of Salford City Council in the Greater Manchester Regional Heat and 

Energy Decarbonisation Delivery Scheme. Approval was also granted for the 
acceptance and signing of a Grant Funding Agreement, once it has been received and 
in line with the bid made to the funder. 

Report submitted at the Property/Regeneration Briefing on 25 October 2021 to 
approve the continued participation of Salford City Council in the Greater Manchester 

Regional Heat and Energy Decarbonisation Delivery Scheme. Request for the 
acceptance and signing of a revised Grant Funding Agreement, once it has been 
received and in line with the bid made to the funder. 

 

KEY DECISION:  Yes total value of contract is estimated at £607,568. 

 

DETAILS:   

The Greater Manchester’s 5-Year Environment Plan sets out GM’s long-term 

environmental vision. The plan sets out urgent actions that need to be taken in the 
next 5 years to help achieve this carbon neutrality. On 17 July 2019 the counci l 

unanimously declared a Climate Emergency underlining the seriousness of the need 
to mitigate climate change. 
 

The project will also contribute towards Greater Manchester’s target of becoming a 
carbon-neutral city region by 2038. The GM 5 Year Environment Plan commits GM 

to increasing local renewable energy generation by at least 45 MW by 2024 and 

Page 13



Sample C – Exception to CSO’S 

councils need to lead by example. The addition of further 11 sites will generate 390 
kWp of energy generation. 

Grant funding from the £1 billion Public Sector Decarbonisation Scheme fund has 
been sought to 100% fund the proposed investments from Salix as the funding body 

and Department for Business, Energy & Industrial Strategy (BEIS). As part of a 
consortium bid with 15 GM partners, the GMCA were awarded £78.7m of grant funding 
on in February 21. 

The funding is to deliver installation of heat decarbonization and energy generation 
technologies across the public estate. The intended outcome of this project is to 

decarbonise the heating and increase local renewable energy generation, as well as 
stimulate the spend within the green economy. The outcomes from the proposed 
project will also contribute towards Greater Manchester’s target of becoming a carbon-

neutral city region by 2038. The GM 5 Year Environment Plan commits GM to 
increasing local renewable energy generation by at least 45 MW by 2024 and councils 

need to be at the forefront of this work. 

As one of the partners in the bid, Salford City Council applied for the installation of 11 
solar PV, and 12 Air Source Heat Pumps, across 21 Salford City Council owned sites. 

We applied for 100% grant funding and the total value of the works will be £5.26m, 
with the PV installations costing £647,828.  

Through the delivery of the project the GMCA has identified spare budget capacity 
that could fund further installations and as such asked partners to submit the sites they 
could deliver within the extended timeframe to 31st March 2022.  

Salford City council identified a further 11 sites for Solar PV installations, they have 
been put forward by the Energy Management Team and Property as the most suitable 

from the estate from their knowledge of the buildings. The sites vary in size and nature 
and have been reviewed by the GMCA alongside the eligibility criteria for the funding.  

The GMCA has confirmed that 38% could be provided by the grant (£230,000 with 

SCC providing 62% match. This would come from the approved Invest to Save budget 
for the installation of solar PV (£377,568) that sites in Property’s capital budget for 

21/22. 

To date we are progressing well with the installations at the 23 sites initially approved. 
The 11 PV sites are installed and awaiting commissioning and handover. Given the 

scale of pace that delivery has been achieved on the initial sites there is confidence 
that these additional sites can also be achieved by the funding deadline. 

Proposed Additional PV Sites 

 

Site 
Project 
Costs 

Additional 
Contingency 

Total 
Cost 

Estimated 
Timescales 

Eccles Town Hall  £120,308 £6,015 £126,323 4 Weeks 

Granville Resource Centre  £56,505 £2,825 £59,330 1 Week 

Alderbrook Primary Partnership Centre  £106,100 £5,305 £111,405 2 Weeks 

Alexandra House Resource Centre  £54,432 £2,722 £57,154 1 Week 

Page 14



Sample C – Exception to CSO’S 

City Learning Centre Buile Hill  £49,447 £2,472 £51,919 0.6 Week 

Brierley House Day Care Centre  £47,880 £2,394 £50,274 1 Week 

Boothstown Community Centre  £44,253 £2,213 £46,466 1 Week 

Children's Home 159 Station Rd  £24,329 £1,217 £25,546 0.5 Week 

Ingledene Childrens Home £22,049 £1,202 £25,251 0.5 Week 

Ordsall Leisure Centre  £31,206 £1,560 £32,766 1 Week 

St Mary's Park Sports Pavilion  £20,128 £1,006 £21,134 0.5 Week 

All works relating to the supply, installation and commissioning, together with ENWL 
grid connection applications are to be carried out by NPS Energy Ltd, and the 
installations have to be delivered by February 2022 in order to be eligible for funding. 

Based on the delivery of the original 11 sites, timescales of delivery to claim grant and 
the difficulties of partners to procure contractors to the original works the appointment 

of NPS Energy Ltd is the only way we can deliver scheme.  This can clearly be seen 
when looking at the estimated installation timescale for each site, suggesting 13 weeks 
required. 

A summary of potential savings in terms of energy generation, carbon and financial 
are as follows: 

 

Site 

Year 1 
electricity 
generation 

(kWh) 

Year 1 
CO2 

saving 
(Tonnes) 

Year 1 
Financial 

Savings (£) 

Eccles Town Hall  59,510 14 £9,645 

Granville Resource Centre  28,660 7 £4,067 

Alderbrook Primary Partnership Centre  78,960 18 £11,930 

Alexandra House Resource Centre  37,300 9 £5,126 

City Learning Centre Buile Hill  27,940 6 £4,361 

Brierley House Day Care Centre  24,720 6 £3,920 

Boothstown Community Centre  15,670 4 £2,153 

Children's Home 159 Station Rd  7,430 2 £1,054 

Ingledene Childrens Home 8,130 2 £1,137 

Ordsall Leisure Centre  12,910 3 £1,774 

St Mary's Park Sports Pavilion  6,520 1 £896 

The addition of further 11 sites could generate 389.88 kWp of energy generation (in 
addition to the 540.63kWp from the original 11 sites) towards this target, with annual 

generation of 308MWh. 

NPS ENERGY: 

NPS Energy is a Greater Manchester based company, established in 2005 and as a 

company, has been at the forefront of providing renewable energy technologies for 
over 15 years. Appointment of them to this GM wide scheme demonstrates a level of 

social value within the contract both as a local provider and employer. This sector is 

Page 15



Sample C – Exception to CSO’S 

also considered to be an emerging one, which will benefit from schemes of this size 
being delivered locally by GM regional specialists.  

In 2015 NPS Energy were approached as part of a competitive tender process by 
Greater Manchester Community Renewables (GMCR). The proposed project was to 

supply and install Solar PV on several schools and community buildings, some of 
which were in the Salford area. Over the years the company have built a strong long 
lasting relationship with GMCR and have to date successfully installed over 1,300 

solar PV panels (350 kW) across 9 different sites in Greater Manchester of which 6 
are Salford schools.  

Selection of NPS Energy Limited for this contract, is related to the completed phase 1 
feasibility studies they carried out for Salford City Council in support of the joint GM 
funding application. They completed detailed design and feasibility surveys at the 11 

PV sites across Salford City Council’s estate, provided survey reports inclusive of; 
structural assessments, detailed energy data (current usage and projected savings), 

equipment design drawings and detailed installation, commissioning and systems 
management specifications.  

Following a successful funding application to Salix Finance, we are now looking for an 

exception to award the contract for these additional works to NPS.  

This next phase is a 40% grant funded capital project dependent on completion within 

a strict timescale. Contract award to NPS Energy Limited will put Salford in the best 
position to be able to complete all PV installation works by Feb 22. Award to NPS will 
also provide continuity of service from phase 1 works into phase 2 and will prove 

economically beneficial as NPS have completed detail design and costings which can 
be held into phase 2. Consideration of appointing a new contractor at this stage has 

been determined a high risk to not completing the project both on time and in budget. 

SOCIAL VALUE: 

The company has a passion for training and developing staff from year 1 and have 

had multiple apprentices and trainees come through their company system. Over the 
years the company have skilled up and trained numerous individuals to enable them 

to have a career, some have stayed with the organisation, others have moved on into 
skilled positions at other companies such as Electricity North West, Mace construction 
and Mitie facilities management. NPS Energy are proud to have played a part in the 

development of all of their employees past and present. 

NPS Energy has also had multiple works experience placements over the years, 

although this has been harder to engage with more recently with Covid-19 restrictions 
in the last 12 months. 

The company currently have 1 full time apprentice and 1 additional employee who is 

a trainee electrician, in addition 2 other full time qualified electricians and an office 
manager. All employees are trained and experienced in the renewable technologies 

that they provide, particularly solar PV which forms a core part of our business. All 
employees are all on full time PAYE contracts and the company do not operate with 
zero hours or temporary subcontract arrangements. 

Page 16



Sample C – Exception to CSO’S 

Subject to the award of the contract, NPS Energy have confirmed they would be 
looking at taking on 2 additional staff members in order to deliver the project, which 

would be in line with the aim of the grant fund in the Chancellor’s ‘Plan for Jobs 2020’. 

The company subcontract specialist elements of projects for example, where 

scaffolding and roofing contractors, or specialist access equipment is required. All of 
these contracts are sourced locally they already have good working relationships with 
multiple firms in these areas. 

The company believes in engaging with local communities and endeavours to support 
local organisations and charities.  Examples of this work includes: 

 In 2017 NPS Energy gifted a solar PV system to a charity which owns and 
operates from a building in Wythenshawe. The charity's electricity bills more 
than halved as a result of the system being installed.   

 In 2019 the company gifted £6,000 to 2 local organisations, £3,000 to a local 

primary school to enable them to buy new computers and £3,000 to Hits Radio's 
charity Cash for Kids which supports deprived children across the Greater 

Manchester region.  
 Some of the staff also volunteered at the Cash for Kids Christmas appeal and 

as a team they went for a day to go and support the cash for kids’ charity in 

their warehouse which enables over 30,000 children across Manchester to 
receive a present on Christmas day.    

 In 2020 the company gave £10,000 to a local church charity which works with 
multiple outreach organisations. They work with the homeless community of 
Manchester with multiple projects from furniture restoration to re-homing and 

budgeting support in an attempt to get people off the streets for good.   

Through the works done in partnership with GMCR, NPS Energy have visited multiple 
schools in Salford and have been involved in school assemblies and workshops, 

demonstrating how solar panels work, what they can do and how they can be a benefit. 
The company also had the chance to illustrate to hundreds of children how everyone 
can take responsibility to combat climate change. NPS energy are very proud to have 

been a part of this project with GMCR and look forward to more opportunities to 
engage with local communities in the future. 

Through the original appointment NPS committed to providing the following, in line 

with Salford City Council’s Themes, Outcomes and Measures and in particular Core 
Set for Procurement. We are working with NPS to identify a suitable site to receive 

one complete PV Solar system fully installed by NPS free of charge to a maximum 
value of £10,000. 

 

Theme 

 

 

Outcome 

 

SCC 
Ref 

 

Unit of 
Measure 

 

Units 

 

Value/Unit 

 

Social 
Value 

 

Economic 

  

SCC1 

  

7 

 

£28,137 

 

£196,959 

Page 17



Sample C – Exception to CSO’S 

Development 

 

Number of local 
employees hired 
or retained. 

Number of 
FTE 
employees 

 

Economic 

Development 

 

Equipment or 
resources 
donated to a 
Salford-based 
Charity/Not-for-
profit). 

Comprises one 
complete PV 
Solar system 
fully installed by 
NPS free of 
charge to a 
maximum value 
of £10,000 

 

SCC5 

 

Equivalent 
value (£) 

 

 

1 

 

£10,000 – 
plus 
carbon 
savings / 
additional 
cost 
savings to 
end user 
as 
applicable 

 

£10,000 +  

 

Climate 

Emergency 

 

 

Carbon savings 
from increased 
use of 
renewable 
energy 

 

SCC31 

 

Tonne of 
CO2e 

 

 

143.4 

 

 

£69.35 

 

 

£9,945 

 

TOTAL SOCIAL VALUE       £216,904 

NEW SV OFFER TBC 

 

 

 

KEY COUNCIL POLICIES:  

 Five-year environment plan for Greater Manchester 

 Salford’s Climate Change Strategy – Creating a city prepared for the future 

 

EQUALITY IMPACT ASSESSMENT AND IMPLICATIONS:-   

Not applicable.

 

Page 18



Sample C – Exception to CSO’S 

ASSESSMENT OF RISK:   

Risks have been evaluated and considered both at a project level (PV installation) and 

at scheme level (Greater Manchester Regional Heat and Energy Decarbonisation 
Delivery Scheme).  

 
Procurement of necessary specialist contractors to deliver the installations was 
identified at an early stage as a potential risk. Numbers of specialists in this sector are 

growing but at a slow rate so it can be difficult to secure a single contractor for a project 
this size. Competition for contractors was also a key consideration with other GM 

partners also looking to secure specialists on similar projects. Mitigation for this risk 
was to engage in procurement activities at the earliest opportunity to give Salford the 
best chance at securing the specialist contractor required. 

 
During site delivery/installation works disruption to Council Services during this time is 

a considered and measured risk. Mitigation for this is to complete detailed reviews of 
feasibility reports/surveys to identify possible disruptions, installation duration, key 
usage of sites and then to implement reduction measures. The impact of COVD 19 is 

also a key consideration to be factored in but could mean reduced usage of buildings, 
the team will work closely with colleagues in Property Services to manage this. 

 
Overall delivery of the Greater Manchester Regional Heat and Energy 
Decarbonisation Delivery Scheme within the Feb 22 timescales is a potential risk and 

a delay in this contract award could also prove to be significant both at a project and 
scheme level.  

 

 

SOURCE OF FUNDING: 

Public Sector Decarbonisation Funding – Grant 

Invest to Save – Property 21/22  

 

LEGAL IMPLICATIONS:  

The report further supports the Council’s ambitions in becoming a zero carbon city 

and contribution towards Greater Manchester’s target of becoming a carbon-neutral 
city region by 2038, together with the additional actions to be taken to deliver the 

installation of heat decarbonization and energy generation technologies across the 
Council’s estate at the additional 11 identified sites. 

The proposed appointment of NPS is necessary to support and achieve delivery of 

the additional 11 solar pv sites, including appointment of contractors for construction, 
supplies, and programme management within the tight timescale referred to in the 

report, and their previous successful delivery of the phase 1 sites. 

Ordinarily when commissioning contracts for the procurement of goods, services or 
works the City Council must comply with the requirements of the Public Contracts 

Page 19



Sample C – Exception to CSO’S 

Regulations 2015 (PCR), together with its own Contractual Standing Orders (CSO’s) 
and Financial Regulations, and secure Best Value in its purchasing. For contracts of 

this value the Council would usually undertake a competitive procurement exercise 
on the Chest portal.   

Whilst exceptions to CSO’s may be authorised by a decision notice from the 
Procurement Board, as detailed in section 3 of Part 5 of the Constitution there is still 
a risk of challenge from aggrieved providers if the usual tender process has not been 

followed. The risk of challenge increases in tandem with the value and proposed 
length of the contract. As stated in CSO’s, even though Procurement Board approval 

to appoint NPS is required as the value of the works exceeds £150,000 (stated to be 
approx. £600,000), it is below procurement thresholds (currently circa £4.7 million for 
works contracts) so strict adherence to PCR will not be necessary, and the exception 

to CSO’s is permitted.  

Reasons for requesting approval for the direct appointment of NPS are set out in the 

report, namely great urgency due to very tight timescales (grant funding and spend is 
dependent upon practical completion on site by February 2022), NPS being the only 
provider to ensure continuity of service from phase 1 works into phase 2 and will 

prove economically beneficial, having completed detail design and costings hence 
providing best value going forward, 

The terms of the grant funding agreement for the additional funding referred to with 
BEIS and GMCA (as the lead for the consortium bid) will need to be adhered to in 
the event that there are clawback provisions for failure to comply with timescales and 

any other relevant conditions. The report confirms that the GMCA will contribute 38% 
towards the costs of installation of the 11 additional sites, with the Council 

contributing 62% match funding. 

Supplied by: Tony Hatton, Principal Solicitor 

 

FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS:  

Funding has been secured from GMCA for £230,000 (38%). The balance of 

£377,568 (62%) will come from the solar PV scheme within the council’s approved 
capital programme. The scheme will have no unbudgeted impact on the council. 

Supplied by: Chris Hesketh x2668 

 

PROCUREMENT IMPLICATIONS:  

GMCA applied for Low Carbon Skills Fund in order to secure 100% grant funding for 
Heat or Solar PV studies. As one of the partners in the bid, Salford City Council 
applied for the installation of 11 solar PV.  This has been completed on time and to 

budget.  Salford have now been awarded additional funding to install an additional 

Page 20



Sample C – Exception to CSO’S 

11 sites but the turnaround must be completed by 31st March 2022.  The exception 
to SO’s is in order to complete the installation of the extra 11 sites on time.  

Supplied by: Heather Stanton, Category Manager 

 

HR IMPLICATIONS: Not applicable. 

 
 

 

 

CLIMATE CHANGE IMPLICATIONS:   

The proposed solar project will contribute towards Greater Manchester’s target of 
becoming a carbon-neutral city region by 2038. The GM 5 Year Environment Plan 

commits GM to increasing local renewable energy generation by at least 45 MW by 
2024 and council is demonstrating leadership by being at the forefront of this work. 

Supplied by: Michael Hemingway 

 

OTHER DIRECTORATES CONSULTED:  

Not applicable 

 

CONTACT OFFICER:  Majid Maqbool 

TELEPHONE NUMER: 0161 607 6987

 

WARD(S) TO WHICH REPORT RELATE(S):  

All 

 
 

Page 21



This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	3 To approve, as a correct record, the minutes of the meeting held on 27th October 2021
	5a Request for Approval - Contract Award - Hollybank Supported Housing - Re-roofing - Tracy Squirrel
	5b Request for Approval - Exception to Contractual Standing Orders - Contract Award - Public Sector Decarbonisation Scheme - Solar PV Installation on SCC Assets - Hayley Nixon

